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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to report that the Company
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) achieved strong
growth in its results for the year 2011 with sale revenue of
HK$995.1 million, representing an increase of 73.2% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year, the
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company reached
HK$114.7 million, representing an increase of 91.3% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year.

In 2011, through implementing various measures in
product mix adjustment, deepening our efforts in product
innovation, intensifying market promotion, the Group
achieved sustained growth with flourishing results. Since
2009, through three years of relentless efforts, the Group
accomplished in balancing the development of its product
mix — sale revenue of each of the telecommunications card
chips, social security card chips and identity card chips
accounted for over 15% of sale revenue in 2011; and the
sale revenue of the aforesaid three types of products in
aggregate represented over 70% of total sale revenue.
In 2011, the Group continued to strengthen its efforts in
technology research and introduced many new products
targeting at the telecommunications, social security and
electricity sectors and was widely accepted by customers,
thereby further consolidating the leading position of our
principal products in the market.
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Looking forward into 2012, with increasing focus in
developing the telecommunications, social security and
information security sectors domestically, the overall market
size of the PRC smart cards industry will continue its growth
momentum in 2012, nevertheless, as the market is being
affected by both international and domestic uncertain
economic conditions, the pace of market growth may
slow down and market price competition will further
intensify. Facing such complicated external environment,
the Group, under China Electronics Corporation Limited’s
strategy of “Further strengthening the strategic position
of our principal businesses in the development of the
PRC, optimising resources allocation, creating synergy
across sectors”, will continue to leverage on the strength
of its expertise, deepening its technology innovation
and accumulation, and through various channels such
as merger and acquisition, restructuring and business
cooperation as well as inducing high calibre team, so as to
expand its business coverage, extend its industry chain, add
value to the business, improve the profitability, accelerate
future growth momentum and bring rewarding returns to
our shareholders.

Mr. Xiong Qunli resigned as Chairman and non-executive
director of the Company in August last year due to a
change of work arrangement. On behalf of the Board,
I would like to thank Mr. Xiong for his invaluable
contributions during his term of office.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all staff
member for their contributions and efforts in the past year.
I would also like to express our most sincere gratitude to
our shareholders and business partners for their continuing
co-operation and support.

Rui Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 February 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's integrated circuits design business comprises
the design of integrated circuits chips and the development
of application system. Currently, our products are mainly
used in smart cards such as identity cards, social security
cards, telecommunications cards and electric cards. Our
products are also applied in wireless local area networks.
For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has
obtained 17 new patents, and registered another 16
computer software copyrights and 11 integrated circuits
layout designs.

The Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2011 amounted to HK$995.1 million,
representing an increase of 73.2% when comparing
with the corresponding period of last year. For the
year ended 31 December 2011, sales of a number of
our main products recorded significant increase with
more balance product mix when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year. In particular, sales of
telecommunications card chips increased by 180.2%,
sales of social security card chips increased by 82.9%,
sales of identity card chips increased by 58.4%, with the
total sale revenue of the aforesaid three types of products
amounting to HK$706.4 million. During the year, overall
gross profit margin, which was still maintained at industry
level, dropped 3.9% to 33.1% mainly due to faster growth
in lower gross profit margin telecommunications card chips
business than that of the other smart card chips business.

Selling and marketing costs for the year were HK$41.3
million. Despite sales volume for the year has more than
double when comparing with the corresponding period
of last year, selling and marketing costs were effectively
controlled and recorded a moderate increase of 27% when
comparing with the corresponding period of last year.

Administrative expenses increased by 35.4% to HK$189.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2011. This
was mainly attributable to the increase in research and
development costs. Research and development costs were
HK$139 million in 2011 (2010: HK$93.9 million), which
represented 14% of the revenue for the year ended 31
December 2011 (2010: 16.3%). Research and development
during the year primarily focused on the EMV card, RFID
(“radio frequency identification”) and mobile payment card
chips products.

E 3 C1)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Government grants received increased by 55.4% to
HK$28.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2011
resulted from more government subsidies for research and
development costs incurred by the Group in 2011.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$114.7
million (2010: HK$59.9 million), and the basic earnings per
share was HK6.78 cents (2010: HK3.54 cents).

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010: nil).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group finances its operations primarily by internal
resources and short term bank loans. At 31 December
2011, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounted
to HK$329.5 million, 68% of which was denominated in
Renminbi, 31.8% in United States dollars and 0.2% in
Hong Kong dollars (2010: HK$267.3 million, 74% of which
was denominated in Renminbi, 3.7% in United States
dollars and 22.3% in Hong Kong dollars).

At 31 December 2011, the Group had short term bank
loans of HK$24.7 million, which were denominated
in Renminbi (2010: HK$23.5 million, which were
denominated in Renminbi). The bank loans were borrowed
at contracted fixed interest rate. At 31 December 2011,
committed borrowing facilities available to the Group but
not drawn amounted to HK$49.3 million. The Group’s
revenue are mainly denominated in Renminbi and
payments are denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. The Group will make use of hedging contracts,
when appropriate, to hedge the risk of foreign exchange
fluctuation arising from its operations.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had net current assets
of HK$555.3 million (2010: HK$423.7 million). The overall
gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total liabilities over
total assets of the Group, was 42.4% (2010: 44.9%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any
pledged asset (2010: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any
material capital commitment (2010: nil) for the acquisition
of fixed assets and intangible assets. The Group did not
have any material contingent liability at 31 December 2011
(2010: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2011, the Group had approximately 290
employees, the majority of whom were based in PRC.
Employee benefit expenses during the year were HK$101.5
million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre and
competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy and
performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration policies are
largely in line with industry practices, and are formulated
on the basis of performance and experience and will be
reviewed regularly. Bonus and other merit payments are
linked with the performance of the Group and of the
individuals as incentive to optimise performance. The
Company has in place a share option scheme, pursuant to
which share options may be granted to selected personnel
of the Group, with a view to encouraging employees to
work towards enhancing the value of the Group.

EEERR

R2011F12H318 » A& B I & 1] & EH#H
(201045 - &) -

EXEERIBER

R2011EF12A31B  AEENBERTEENRE
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The Company is committed to achieving the best corporate
governance practices by emphasising its accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The
Company is dedicated to exercise corporate governance
through regular reviews of its adopted practices with
reference to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2011. The following summarises the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
consists of two executive directors, two non-executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors.
The Chairman of the Board is a non-executive director, who
is responsible for leading and overseeing the functioning
of the Board and the strategic development of the Group.
The Managing Director is delegated with the authority and
responsible for managing the Group’s business, and the
implementation of the Group's strategies in achieving the
overall business objectives. There are no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among the directors
(including the Chairman and the Managing Director).

All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation every three years
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the bye-laws
of the Company. The remuneration of the directors are
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities
and experience, and to the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term
business objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor
and control the operating and financial performance of the
Group. The day-to-day operations and implementation of
business objectives are delegated to the Managing Director.
The management is delegated with proper authority to
carry out daily operations and duties.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
PEEARE

The Board has the power and is responsible for appointing
new directors to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. The Board will consider whether the candidate’s
skills, knowledge and experience meet the requirements
of the Company when considering a nomination. In
2011, a board meeting was held, at which all members
of the Board were present, to consider and approve
the nomination and appointment of Mr. Rui Xiaowu as
Chairman of the Board and non-executive director of the
Company. When considering Mr. Rui’s nomination and
appointment, the Board has applied the above mentioned
criteria and procedures.

All directors have actively participated in the review and
monitoring of the Company's business. A list of members
of the Board and their attendance record at the board
meetings held in 2011 are set out below:

Number of full board meetings held in 2011: 4

Member of the Board

EEeERNAERATES NEMBR TR
TNEEEeNE -EFRLERREERHEZERE
REANENT R NBERERESHEEARAN
ERoR0MF RERRMAERNBERLERE
EEFRERARNRFRITESTNREREZERT

—REEEER FTAEEENEVELERE -RE
BRELEZIRELREZIR EESCEA LliZ
ERIEF o

REEURGL2ERT NERARAIERK -EF
ERERERFEMONERITHNESSSR Y
HE sk mT

0NEFRITNERETESH N 44X

Number of meetings attended

EEgHE HESBRXH

Non-executive directors FHTES

Rui Xiaowu (Chairman) (Note 1) WEER (FE) (Aat1) 3

Xiong Qunli (Note 2) BeRE N (Hit2) 2

Zhao Guiwu (Vice Chairman) HER (5/FE) 3

Executive directors HITES

Fan Qingwu (Managing Director) SBRT (EFARSTE) 4

Liu Jinping 2ETF 4

Independent non-executive directors BYkHTES

Chan Kay Cheung PRAE & 4

Wong Po Yan =R 4

Yin Yongli FK A 4

Notes: Htat -

(1) Mr. Rui Xiaowu was appointed Chairman of the Board and (1) WNEREER2011F8ASHEZTAEEESEF
non-executive director on 5 August 2011. RIEMITES -

) Mr. Xiong Qunli resigned as Chairman of the Board and non- ) AR N R0 E8ASHBI T ES @ £ /FE KIE
executive director on 5 August 2011. WITES-

The biographies of the directors are set out on pages 14 to EEHREHENFRFEI4EERITR

17 of the annual report.
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THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the directors’
securities transactions. All directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
fully complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2011.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Po Yan, Mr.
Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Yin Yongli and an executive
director Mr. Fan Qingwu. Mr. Wong Po Yan is the chairman
of the remuneration committee. The terms of reference of
the remuneration committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong.

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
committee include reviewing and recommending to the
Board the remuneration policy and the remuneration of the
directors and the senior management.

The remuneration committee held three meetings in 2011
to review the remuneration policy and the remuneration of
the directors and the senior management. All the members
of the remuneration committee attended these three
meetings.

Details of the remuneration of the directors for the year
ended 31 December 2011 are set out on pages 71 to 73 of
the annual report.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report

SREARE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung,
Mr. Wong Po Yan and Mr. Yin Yongli. The members have
extensive experience in financial matters and one of them is
a certified public accountant. The terms of reference of the
audit committee are available for inspection upon request
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

The audit committee provides an independent review
and supervision of financial reporting, and examines the
effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group and
ensuring the external auditor are independent and the
effectiveness of the audit process. The audit committee
examines all matters relating to the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group, auditing functions,
internal controls, risk management and financial reporting.
External auditor and the directors are invited to attend the
committee meetings as and when necessary. The audit
committee also serves as a channel of communication
between the Board and the external auditor.

The audit committee held two meetings in 2011 to review
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010, the unaudited interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2011 and the effectiveness of the internal control practices
of the Group. The audit committee has also reviewed
the audit plan and approach of the external auditor and
monitored the progress and results of the audit regularly.
The attendance record of each member of the audit
committee at the audit committee meetings held in 2011 is
set out below:

Member of the audit committee

BEREES

ERLZEBEHZUBIIIFNTES N ARHE
ShE BRMEERFKMEEEK EREH
MREGREERAE =L Eh — L EE M
Gt -ERZEE@NBERE IR ARRRNE
BHIEMEREH-

e

ERRERREHMBERETBEIRT RE
£ Win AR B A BB EEIE 2 20RE - DA R FEIRSMNEE
ZBMRFBIMBZEFNBRIE -BEXEE
SREMBBRAEE RSG5 RAMBK A
EH FZME - AMEE - RREE NV EER
FIH-EFER  JMNEZ B N E F AT HORE L E
ZECEER BERLEQUEEEFHEIEZ

LT R EEER

ERZEEM0MNFRITMASE TEAEH
AREBHET2010F12831B I FE 2 KRBEZIE
RER CEHE2011F6 8308 IENE B 2 RE&EEZF
HABF 75 3R R S M BP ES IR 6 e AL - BIZZ B & 0
EEMIIMNEZBAMOEZTE R A W EBE
REZIENERRER - BEZZEERTLZER
Q0MFRITERZEGER 2L BRENT

Number of meetings attended

EREE]ZEER HEESBRE
Chan Kay Cheung (Chairman) BRIEE (F/2) 2
Wong Po Yan EHIRR 2
Yin Yongli* FK A * Z
* Certified public accountant 3 AL & E A

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011



EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the fees paid to the
Company’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-
audit services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries
is set out below:

Corporate Governance Report

SREARE

INEBRZ B
REZE2011F12A31B IEFE st ARQE) K& HH
B A ERENEZ N IEEZRE R AR T INE
ZEME BRSO

2011

20114

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services FE RS 1,585
Non-audit services (included tax matters, IEEZRE (RERKEEE FE R

review and other reporting services) H R AR ) -

1,585

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 31 to 33 of the
annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2011, the directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently
and have made prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimates and have prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis. The Board has also reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group,
including all the material controls in financial, operational
and risk management functions, and have held discussion
with the Group’s external auditor, to ensure that a sound
system is maintained and operated by the management in
compliance with the agreed procedures and standards.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREBEAEHE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Rui Xiaowu, aged 52, is the Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Rui graduated from the Science &
Technology University for National Defense of China in
1982 with a major in Computer Software, was a Master’s
postgraduate and a Research Fellow, and was awarded
the “Government Special Allowance” by the State Council
of the PRC. Mr. Rui is the chairman of China Electronics
Corporation Limited (“CEC"), the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Rui was previously the
director of the 710 Research Institute of the Ministry of
Aerospace Industry of China, the assistant general manager
of China Aerospace Science & Technology Corporation,
the general manager of China Satellite Communications
Corporation and the deputy general manager of China
Aerospace Science & Technology Corporation. Mr. Rui
was also the chairman of China Satellite Communications
Corporation Limited, the chairman and a non-executive
director of China Aerospace International Holdings Limited,
the chairman of Navinfo Company Limited (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), the chairman of
China Spacesat Company Limited (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange), the chairman, president
and an executive director of China Aerospace International
Holdings Limited, the chairman and an executive director
of CASIL Telecommunications Holdings Limited, the
chairman and a non-executive director of APT Satellite
Holdings Limited, and has extensive experience in corporate
management. Mr. Rui joined the Company in August 2011.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhao Guiwu, aged 49, is the Vice Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Zhao graduated from Tianjin University in
the PRC and holds a postgraduate degree in Inorganic Non-
metallic Materials and is a senior engineer. Mr. Zhao is the
general manager of the Integrated Circuit Department of
CEC, the chairman of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), the chairman of
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd, the vice
chairman of Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd, a director
of Shanghai Huahong NEC Electronics Company Ltd and a
non-executive director of Solomon Systech (International)
Limited. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Zhao was in charge of the
Planning Division of the Department of Corporate Planning
of China Electronics Technology Group Corporation and a
director and the deputy general manager of CETC Deqing
Huaying Electronics Co., Ltd. From 2006 to 2008, Mr. Zhao
was the deputy general manager of the Strategic Planning
Department of CEC. From 2008 to 2009, Mr. Zhao was
the general manager of the Planning and Development
Department of CEC. Mr. Zhao was previously the chairman
of Beijing Huahong IC Design Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhao joined the
Company in July 2010.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fan Qingwu, aged 48, is the Managing Director of
the Company. Mr. Fan graduated from the Department
of Aircraft Engineering of Beijing Institute of Technology
and holds a postgraduate degree in Economics from the
Renmin University of China in the PRC. From 1996 to 1999,
Mr. Fan was the executive vice president of China Securities
Industry Institute. From 1999 to 2003, he was the general
manager of the Investment Banking Department and the
Asset Management Department of CEC. Mr. Fan was also
the Chief Economist of CEC. Mr. Fan joined the Company
in September 2004.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREBEAEHE

Mr. Liu Jinping, aged 59, is an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the Department of Radio
Engineering of Beijing Institute of Technology in the PRC
and is a senior engineer. Since 2003, Mr. Liu is the general
manager of China Integrated Circuit Design Corp., Ltd
("China Huada"”), the Company’s substantial shareholder,
and the chairman of various subsidiaries of China Huada,
which include Nationz Technologies Inc. (a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and Beijing Huada
Zhibao Electronic System Co., Ltd. From 1994 to 2002, Mr.
Liu was the deputy general manager of the SDIC Electronic
Co. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Liu was the deputy general
manager of SDIC Venture Capital Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu was
appointed director of the Company in July 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 65, is a senior advisor of
The Bank of East Asia, Limited, the vice chairman of The
Bank of East Asia (China) Limited and the chairman of
Shaanxi Fuping BEA Rural Bank Corporation. Mr. Chan
was an executive director and the deputy chief executive
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. Mr. Chan joined The
Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965 and possesses extensive
knowledge and experience in the banking industry. Mr.
Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers, a member of the Process Review Committee for
the oversight of Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a member
of the Clearing and Settlement Systems Appeals Tribunal,
a member of The China Unionpay International Advisory
Group, an international senior economic consultant of The
People’s Government of Shaanxi Province and a member
of the Committee of Overseers of Lee Woo Sing College,
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is also
an independent non-executive director of Chu Kong
Shipping Development Company Limited, Hong Kong Food
Investment Holdings Limited and SOCAM Development
Limited (formerly known as Shui On Construction and
Materials Limited). Mr. Chan was appointed director of the
Company in May 1997.
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Mr. Wong Po Yan, aged 88, is the founder of United
Oversea Enterprises Limited. Mr. Wong was the vice
chairman of the Basic Law Committee of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region under the Standing
Committee of the National People’s Congress, a member
of the Drafting Committee of Basic Law of Hong Kong,
a member of the Preparatory Committee of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the chairman of the
Hong Kong Airport Authority. Mr. Wong had been a
member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council for 9
years. Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive
director of Shenzhen Investment Limited, Allied Group
Limited, FinTronics Holdings Company Limited, Sinopec
Kantons Holdings Limited and Mingfa Group (International)
Company Limited. Mr. Wong was an independent non-
executive director of Alco Holdings Limited. Mr. Wong was
appointed director of the Company in May 1997.

Mr. Yin Yongli, aged 72, graduated from Shandong
Finance Institute in the PRC. Mr. Yin is a Certified Public
Accountant in the PRC and has extensive experience in
auditing and financial management. From 2005 to 2008,
Mr. Yin was the chairman of Tianhua Certified Public
Accountants. He was the chairman of China Rightson
Certified Public Accountants and various audit firms in
the PRC during the period from 1999 to 2005. Before
that, Mr. Yin worked in the petrochemical industry in the
PRC for over 35 years. From 1985 to 1999, Mr. Yin held
various senior positions in the finance department of
Sinopec Corporation. Mr. Yin is the chairman of Beijing
Tong Tai Insurance Brokerage Limited and an independent
director of China Merchants Energy Shipping Co., Ltd. Mr.
Yin was an independent supervisor of Sinopec Shanghai
Petrochemical Company Limited. Mr. Yin was appointed
director of the Company in September 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 50, is the Company Secretary of
the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting from the University of Liverpool in England. Mr.
Ng is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng has many
years of experience in auditing, finance and administration.
Mr. Ng joined the Company in November 2008.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRS

The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) is the design, research and
development and sale of integrated circuits. The activities
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 34 of the annual
report.

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in
Note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 22 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 38 of the annual
report and Note 23 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company had no distributable reserve at 31 December
2011 as calculated under the law of Bermuda and the
Company'’s bye-laws (2010: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 95
to 96 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive Directors

Rui Xiaowu (Chairman) (appointed on 5 August 2011)
Zhao Guiwu (Vice Chairman)

Xiong Qunli (resigned on 5 August 2011)

Executive Directors
Fan Qingwu (Managing Director)
Liu Jinping

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Kay Cheung

Wong Po Yan

Yin Yongli

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1), Mr. Chan Kay Cheung
and Mr. Wong Po Yan shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Wong Po Yan offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive directors as regards
their independence to the Company, and considers them to
be independent.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2011, none of the directors nor the
chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which
were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 20 June 2002,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) to replace the old share option
scheme. According to the Share Option Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may grant share options to
any executive and non-executive directors of the Company,
full time employees and part-time employees of the
Group, advisors, consultants, distributors, suppliers, agents,
customers, partners, joint venture partners, promoters and
service providers to the Group. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide the participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
and to encourage participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company.
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The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme must not exceed
108,356,000 ordinary shares, representing 6.41% of the
issued share capital at the date of the annual report. The
maximum number of shares which might be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes adopted by the Company must
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time. The total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted to each participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. No share options were
outstanding under the old share option scheme.

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the share
option for a certain period before exercising the share
option unless otherwise determined by the board of
directors. The exercise period of a share option should be
any period determined by the board of directors but in any
event the exercise period should not later than 10 years
from the date of grant. The grantee must accept the share
option within 21 days from the date of offer by making a
non-refundable payment of HK$1 to the Company.

The exercise price of share options shall be at the discretion
of the board of directors provided that it shall be not less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on
the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing prices of
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on
the date of grant. The Share Option Scheme will remain in
force until 19 June 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no share option
was granted under the Share Option Scheme, nor was any
share option exercised, cancelled or lapsed. The Company
had no outstanding share option at 1 January 2011 and 31
December 2011.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company or their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions
with connected persons which constituted “continuing
connected transactions” under the Listing Rules. Details of
these continuing connected transactions which are subject
to the reporting and annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules are summarised as follows:
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Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC", together with
its subsidiaries, the “CEC Group”), is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of being the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

On 19 July 2010, the Company entered into the 2010-
2013 business services agreement (the “2010-2013 Business
Services Agreement”) with CEC in order to streamline the
continuing connected transactions between members of the
Group and the CEC Group. The 2010-2013 Business Services
Agreement took effect from 10 September 2010. Pursuant to
the 2010-2013 Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group
provides products processing, testing and assembling services
to the Group, while the Group purchases raw materials and
modules from the CEC Group and sells products to the CEC
Group. The 2010-2013 Business Services Agreement and the
related caps were approved by the independent shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 10 September 2010,
details of which are set out in the circular dated 9 August
2010.

The Company has subsequently revised the caps for the
provision of products processing, testing and assembling
services by the CEC Group and the purchase of raw materials
and modules from the CEC Group under the 2010-2013
Business Services Agreement. The revised caps were approved
by the independent shareholders at the special general
meeting held on 10 October 2011, details of which are set
out in the circular dated 19 September 2011.

Sale of products including integrated circuit cards and smart
cards modules and chips to the CEC Group. Sale of products
were based on the 2010-2013 Business Services Agreement.
All the transactions were carried out on normal commercial
terms and with reference to market rates.

Raw materials and modules purchased from the CEC Group
are for the Group's research and development of integrated
circuit cards, smart cards and chips. The CEC Group also
provides products processing, testing and assembling services
to the Group. Purchase of raw materials and modules from
the CEC Group and provision of products processing, testing
and assembling services by the CEC Group were based on the
2010-2013 Business Services Agreement. All the transactions
were carried out on normal commercial terms and with
reference to market rates.

Wi

(ii)

(iii)
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On 19 July 2010, the Company entered into a
comprehensive financial services agreement (the “Financial
Services Agreement”) with China Electronics Corporation
Finance Co., Ltd ("CEC Finance”), a subsidiary of CEC.
The Financial Services Agreement took effect from 10
September 2010. Pursuant to the Financial Services
Agreement, the financial services provided by CEC Finance
to the Group includes deposit services, financial assistance
and fee- and commission-based financial services. The
Financial Services Agreement and the related caps were
approved by the independent shareholders at the special
general meeting held on 10 September 2010, details of
which are set out in the circular dated 9 August 2010.

Pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement, the Group
utilises the deposit services provided by CEC Finance. The
interest rates for the Group's deposits with CEC Finance
are determined by making reference to the standard
interest rates published by the People’s Bank of China
for the same type of deposits. Such interest rates will
not be less than the rates offered to the Group by other
domestic commercial banks for comparable deposits.
The maximum daily balance of deposits (together with
the interests accrued thereon) maintained by the Group
with CEC Finance shall not exceed RMB80 million and
the Group's actual balance of deposits with CEC Finance
on any given day during the year ended 31 December
2011 had not exceeded such amount. For the provision
of financial assistance, the interest rates for the financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group are
determined by making reference to the standard interest
rates published by the People’s Bank of China for the
same type of financial assistance. Such interest rates will
not be higher than the rates offered to the Group by
other domestic commercial banks for comparable financial
assistance. The maximum amount of financial assistance
provided by CEC Finance to the Group shall not exceed
RMB80 million on any given day and no financial assistance
had ever been granted to the Group pursuant to the
Financial Services Agreement during the year ended 31
December 2011. For the provision of fee- and commission-
based financial services, the fees and commissions for the
fee- and commission-based financial services provided by

R2010F7 198 ARRHEPHEFEE ZWE
RAFEEFHBEEREETAR ([FEFHK])
FIVEESRAEERE (MRS HE]) - i
fRTE %% 22010F9 A 10 B £ 4 - IRIE 8 7 R 1
FPEUBAASERECUBRBEETK
RIS BB EDREFEENASAERE ZH
BRI - BRE HE BB S ERREBABL
FREF2010F9A10B BT REFRIAE it
e BBEFBEH N BEA2010F8/59H 2B K
ﬁqo

BREVERERE AEBFEFRTEMBIREZ
GEHRE AEEBTHRPEM B ZFERZFE
Ka2ERE ARFBITHRRAETRAMZIZEFEK
BHE ZMNEBET2ENEMIBAGERITI
AR FRRAASEERE AR KEEFHRN
FEUBcER R TRES® (RIEMELEZ
FE)TBBAREIBEE L MAEERER
2011F12A31 B I FEEMEFE B BN B S %
FRHE R RRE I R I 205 - R IR B 7%
BB PEFBRRNEBEIRETEE R 2 M EL
2ZH0E ARIBITHRRFABEITEE B QM 2 IFEEF]
K E ZAEBETea RN EMRREERTT
AR B ENRAEERREZFI K R EH
BRAEEREVEELE 2R SERTAETE
BHETEBBARKI OAE T MABFBHEAES
201112 A31 8 IEFEIW LB IRIEMS IR %
REFATBEED TASE BARIREZRFES
MASTHERE W ERE  PER KR AEER
RERFEENASTERBE 2 MBRE 2 FE
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CEC Finance to the Group are determined by reference to,
and shall not be higher than, the fees and commissions
charged by other domestic commercial banks or financial
institutions for the same type of financial services. The
cap for fees and commissions payable for the fee- and
commission-based financial services provided by CEC
Finance to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 is RMB4 million and no fee- and commission-based
financial service had ever been provided to the Group
pursuant to the Financial Services Agreement during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

The above continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive directors of
the Company. In the opinion of the independent non-
executive directors of the Company, the above continuing
connected transactions were carried out in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms and were in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Based on the result of agreed upon procedures performed
on the above continuing connected transactions, the
auditors have confirmed that:

o these transactions had been approved by the board
of directors of the Company;

° the selected transactions were in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group;

° the selected transactions were entered into
in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

o these transactions had not exceeded their respective
caps as disclosed in previous announcements.

Report of the Directors

ESEHRS
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EEEHRS

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered to
have interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of

the Group:

EENBFEXEB 2 ES

REEAMBEARER  TIHARBEZHR
AEEERNEBERNEEBREF LA EBK

BE 2 EHmE:

Nature of

director’s interest

Principal business in the entity
Name of director Name of entity of the entity EEREHAER
ExuA BEREEE BRCITEXRH ZEEME
Rui Xiaowu CEC (Note 1) Investment holdings Chairman
mEER hEEFEE (M) REER BEER
Zhao Guiwu CEC (Note 1) Investment holdings General manager of
HER PEETFEE (M) & 1R the Integrated Circuit
Department of CEC
B B 5 B SR K EE BK
RERHEE
Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd Manufacturing of Chairman
(Note 2) integrated circuits FER
FiERERDARRAR] EXEREE
(Hi722)
Shanghai Huahong Integrated ~ Design of integrated circuits Chairman
Circuit Co., Ltd (Note 2) EREERE BER
EBETEXNEEERAT
(Hi7z2)
Shanghai Huahong (Group) Design and manufacturing Vice chairman
Co., Ltd (Note 2) of integrated circuits BEEER
FEELT(SE)BRATA EXRER R MRS
(B1at2)
Shanghai Huahong NEC Manufacturing of Director
Electronics Company Ltd integrated circuits o=
(Note 2) ERXE RS
EBEINECEFHRAA
(K1522)
Liu Jinping China Integrated Circuit Investment holdings General manager
8|5 Design Corp., Ltd (Note 2) BEER FREE
PEEXENERRTER
BRAFR (Kat2)
Nationz Technologies Inc Design of integrated circuits Chairman
(Note 2) EREERE BER

B R BT B R A T
(K1:22)

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011



Notes:

M CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information
technology conglomerate, and has subsidiaries or associates
engaging in integrated circuits related businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

) These companies are engaging in, or have subsidiaries or
associates engaging in, integrated circuits related businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

The above mentioned competing businesses are operated
and managed by independent management and
administration. The board of directors of the Company
exercises independent judgment and is always acting for
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. Accordingly, the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
competing businesses mentioned above.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2011, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO showed that the following persons
had notified the Company that they had an interest of 5%
or more in the issued share capital of the Company:

Report of the Directors

ESEHRS

Wi

(1) FEEFEREAARFAZKEERRR-PHE
FEER—FRFEFREMAMKITEZZE N
HELCEEE EMBARIBEARHERE
EAREEXEGER R BB T A REBKE
FZERERBAER-

Q)  WEARHEMBAFKBEATGELEER
SEXBEERNERBRBFRARBREFZ
SRERBERER-

btz HFRREERBLEREEMITRABLE
KRER - ANRREFZETTEE LA B M AKRRA]
RERBR 2 BEFMITE - At - AREBAER
FEEUBUN EABRFEH 2T AEERE X
& o

FTERE

R2011F12A318  RIEBEFHF R HEKMIFE336
BEARREBGEZEEREEZMAT R THA
TEMEARARRFEEFBEARAEETHRAS%
A EZ RS

Name of interested party

FEREEER

China Electronics Corporation
(BVI) Holdings Company
Limited (“CEC (BVI)")

China Integrated Circuit Design

Corp., Ltd (“China Huada")
CEC (Notes 1 and 2)

SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd

(Note 1)

The State Development and Investment

Corporation (Note 1)

China Electronics Corporation
(BVI) Holdings Company
Limited (T CEC (BVI) ])

PEEAENERRTEE
BRAR([HEEKX])

TERETFER (HF1Kk2)

R ERRIRERRAA]
(Htet1)

BRFAERERR (Ht1)

Number or
attributable
number of
shares
interested Percentage
BEREWN of shareholding
BB EE ERBESL
812,500,000 48.03%
393,680,000 23.27%
1,206,180,000 71.30%
393,680,000 23.27%
393,680,000 23.27%
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Notes:

(M The equity interest of China Huada is contributed as to
50% by CEC and as to 50% by SDIC High-Tech Investment
Co., Ltd. SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of The State Development and Investment
Corporation, which is a state-owned investment holding
company established under the laws of the PRC. By virtue of
the SFO, CEC, SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd and The
State Development and Investment Corporation are deemed
to be interested in the 393,680,000 shares of the Company
held by China Huada.

() CEC holds 100% interest in CEC (BVI) and is deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by CEC
(BVI). The directors regard CEC, a state-owned enterprise
established under the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate
holding company of the Group.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2011, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Wi
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for 72.7% of the Group's sales for the
year and sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for 19.4% of the Group's sales for the year.
For the year ended 31 December 2011, the aggregate
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for 94.1% of the Group’s purchases for
the year and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier accounted for 62.4% of the Group's purchases for
the year.

CEC Group is not a beneficial owner of any of the five
largest customers and is the beneficial owner of two of
the five largest suppliers of the Group. Details of the
transactions are set out in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of
the five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of
the Company, at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group and discussed
the Group's internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the management. The audit committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Report of the Directors
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Rui Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 February 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 94, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2011, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT RS
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 February 2012

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

malsEk
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31MBLLEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
g TET FATT

Revenue WA 5 995,111 574,586
Cost of sales $H & A AR 7 (665,832) (362,099)
Gross profit EX 329,279 212,487
Other gains — net H bWz — 558 6 31,244 21,276
Selling and marketing costs §HE N T 35 4 & A AN 7 (41,289) (32,517)
Administrative expenses THFE X 7 (189,287) (139,753)
Operating profit KRR 129,947 61,493
Finance income — net RE WA —F5E 10 1,282 1,633
Profit before taxation KR %% Al % R 131,229 63,126
Taxation 1B 11 (16,570) (3,185)
Profit for the year AEERA 114,659 59,941
Attributable to owners of EERAQAEZEEE

the Company 12 114,659 59,941
Dividends BRE 13 - =

HK cents HK cents
R 1T Bl

Earnings per share BRER 14

— Basic — B 6.78 3.54

— Diluted —#E 6.78 3.54
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ReZmEkaEx
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLLFE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit for the year REEGRF 114,659 59,941
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEEKE:
the year:
Exchange differences on translation of BREBIINEBERE R
financial statements of foreign operations fE =% 20,133 8,517
Total comprehensive income for AFEETHEHWSARHE
the year 134,792 68,458
Attributable to owners of BEREALAREERFEE
the Company 134,792 68,458

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFRH
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
20115128318 2010F12H31H
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
g FE&x FATT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B KRR 15 16,988 21,253
Intangible assets EILEE 16 4,281 3,955
Deferred tax assets RAETIIEE E 11 28,560 20,999
Investment in an associate REEE N T 2w E 6 - 523
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESHEE 18 2,467 2,361
52,296 49,091
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 268,457 261,312
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H i fE W FRIB 20 404,672 280,458
Cash and cash equivalents B NIReEEBY 21 329,453 267,285
1,002,582 809,055
Total assets BEEH#AT 1,054,878 858,146
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable ZAQFEZEIZTEE
to owners of the Company EhREAR#E
Issued equity BEITHER 22 889,171 889,171
Other reserves H b 23 (321,238) (341,371)
Retained earnings/ RBHF,

(accumulated losses) (B5TEE) 39,646 (75,013)
Total equity e RE 607,579 472,787
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities HREEE

Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMERFKIB 24 422,629 361,855

Short term bank loans HHISRITE R 25 24,670 23,504
Total liabilities BEHE 447,299 385,359
Total equity and liabilities ERREERE 1,054,878 858,146
Net current assets REBEEEE 555,283 423,696
Total assets less current liabilities ZA&EERREAG 607,579 472,787
The financial statements on pages 34 to 94 were approved HNEMNEETFUE I BERERKEES 2012
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 FE)A27E M E R IERET|ES W A ATKRER
February 2012 and are signed on its behalf by: =2,

Rui Xiaowu B2 Fan Qingwu 3 5 47
Director &% Director &%
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Balance Sheet

31 December

EERER

31 December

2011 2010
2011%12A831H 2010F12H31H
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
Kt FE T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE R 5 591 105
Investments in subsidiaries B AR E 17 658,429 564,980
659,020 565,085
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H i fE W FRIB 20 739 784
Cash and cash equivalents B MIREEEBY 21 94,779 200,464
95,518 201,248
Total assets EEHATE 754,538 766,333
EQUITY Ea
Capital and reserves BXR#E
Share capital N 22 889,171 889,171
Other reserves H iR 23 61,672 61,672
Accumulated losses Z25tE18 (200,770) (189,962)
Total equity B 750,073 760,881
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M E IR 24 4,465 5,452
Total equity and liabilities Bk aEEEE 754,538 766,333
Net current assets REBEEEE 91,053 195,796
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERREAG 750,073 760,881

The financial statements on pages 34 to 94 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
February 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

HNFMAEZFIAA 2B HMREEFTEN2012
F2RA27TAHERTETE WA FIIALTRERER

=

Rui Xiaowu 5 B &
Director &%

Fan Qingwu 38 % &
Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATERFEEESG

Retained

earnings/
Issued Other (accumulated Total
equity reserves losses) equity

REHER,
ERITRESE Hitiftes (RHEE) REmAE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Hat FAET FAET FHETT FHAT
At 1 January 2010 720101818 889,171 (346,842) (138,000) 404,329
Total comprehensive income FH R EE%E = 8,517 59,941 68,458
Share option lapsed B R A 23 - (3,046) 3,046 =
At 31 December 2010 72010%F12H31H 889,171 (341,371) (75,013) 472,787
At 1 January 2011 720111818 889,171 (341,371) (75,013) 472,787
Total comprehensive income e e - 20,133 114,659 134,792
At 31 December 2011 ®2011512H31H 889,171 (321,238) 39,646 607,579
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

REBREREBR

Year ended 31 December

B Z12A31BLLFEE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FERT FHET
Cash flows from operating RETHZRERE
activities
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEE S (FTA)
operations ZRE 26 97,107 (110,921)
Interest paid S ATHLE (1,646) (1,109)
Income tax paid YA PTIEHR (24,968) (16,067)
Net cash generated from/(used in) &2 EF8EL, (FTH)
operating activities 2R FE 70,493 (128,097)
Cash flows from investing REZHZHRERE
activities
Interest received U BR 1] & 2,928 2,742
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BELERER
equipment and intangible assets EREE (15,016) (12,724)
Proceeds on disposal of property, ﬁ’%?@% B &
plant and equipment RIS IR 6,359 225
Proceed on disposal of an associate &5 & A &) FT13 508 1,323 —
Net cash used in investing activities & & )EENFTA 2R & /558 (4,406) (9,757)
Cash flows from financing METHZRERE
activities
Proceeds from bank loans RITERFERIE 24,670 22,968
Repayment of bank loans borrowed ﬁaﬁfﬁﬁﬁm (24,670) (22,968)
Net cash used in BEEBTAZ
financing activities REeFE - >
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRREEEY
and cash equivalents #Bin, CRd)H5E 66,087 (137,854)
Effect of foreign exchange [ERE) 2
rate changes TE (3,919) 7,719
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzRE R
beginning of the year REeFEEY 267,285 397,420
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRZEER
end of the year REEEY 21 329,453 267,285
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which is
established in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are the design, research and
development and sale of integrated circuits.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation
(@) Compliance with HKFRS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

1. —REH

FHREFEEIERERAT ([AAF]) A KR
FEMHESFMKL WRERELBELENBRE
ERR - ARAIRNDEBBHERZFABR AR L
™ o AR B M RE i = R 4k & Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

ARBIZBEERRARATHEETFEREXEH
BRAR (FHRETFEE]) (—XRPEARK
B (THRB)KSZL2BE)

ARAEEMBAR (BB AEENTEE
BREKRER ZRT MEMHEE-

2. EXESTHERHME

RENGAMBRRARAN T Z S BRES
M -BRBEBEN HEFBRR—BEERERAR
IBEERIFE-

2.1 mEEE
@ e BB EREER

AEENGESMBRRDVKEHBTESHANAE
B BATHHRELER ([ FBHHHRELEA )
B NF AWM HRRERELRANERERE -

RAETABEPBREEANGRA M BRRAME
RETHERzETHE EEEHRERAEEN
S BRBRE T AT EE A H - B ARSI
BRME P RBEHERERENEE PR
EZHBNERNGE EMF4ATRE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(a) Compliance with HKFRS (Cont'd)

These consolidated financial statements have also been
prepared using the principles of merger accounting, as
prescribed in Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations” (“HKAG
5") in accounting for the acquisition of the 64.75% equity
interests of CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada
Electronics”) in September 2009. Financial statements of
Huada Electronics and its subsidiaries have been included
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group as
if the acquisition of the 64.75% equity interests of Huada
Electronics had occurred at the previous balance sheet
dates presented.

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
had adopted the following new or revised Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"”) and HKFRS, amendments
and interpretation to existing HKAS and HKFRS that are
relevant to its operations and effective for the accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2011:
HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments
(effective from 1 July 2010)

Annual Improvements
Project

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

The adoption of such amendments and interpretation to
existing standards did not have any significant effect on
results or financial position of the Group for the current
year.

2. EXRSTHEHRBE#)

21 RBEE(Z)
@ FEBEHBEREER (F)

RNz & B SRR H 74200949 A U fE64.75% 18 ;X

BEASTRATABRETIRAR([EXRETF])Z
B RABAEETIESIE5% [ REEH THE
ptzaftgs sl (158254635855 ]) At
ZEHEHEARARR -EXRETRENB A A
ZHBRREFTALREB ZGAMBEREK B
W64 T5%EREF R ERERNZINCEE
BEXRED®EA-

(b)  FATER ERIEET R 2 FE

REZE2011F12A3MBIEEE  REBEEAT
DIEH R EBER2011E1 A1 B2 25/
EMZ I REERI BB ST ER ([FESHE
B ) R BEABMEREER  HIRGH AR
NEABVEREER Z BT ARE:

55 (BEHE UEzTAMEcREaE
mERE (B2010F7A1HEAER)
ZEE)-2E
%1958

FENHEEEB BEEMBREERZ

232010

RMZEHRALERN BRI NREBETEHAKE
RAFEZEZESIMBRARABRERNTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont'd)

At the date of authorisation of this consolidated financial
statements, the following new or revised HKAS and HKFRS,
amendments and interpretation to existing HKAS and
HKFRS have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
(amendment) (effective from 1 January 2013)
HKAS 12 Income Taxes (effective from
(amendment) 1 January 2012)
HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
(revised 2011) (effective from 1 January 2013)
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint Ventures
(revised 2011) (effective from 1 January 2013)
HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Transfer of Financial
(amendment) Assets (effective from
1 January 2012)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective
from 1 January 2015)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
(effective from 1 January 2013)
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective from
1 January 2013)
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities (effective from 1 January
2013)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective

from 1 January 2013)

The Group did not early adopt any of these new or
revised HKAS and HKFRS, amendments and interpretation
to existing HKAS and HKFRS. Management is currently
assessing the financial impact of these revisions to the
Group's financial position and performance.

2. EXRSTHEHRBE#)

21 RBEE(Z)

(b)  FETER ERIEETRZFE ()

REBTNBERN G BRRE D SHEMER KR
EZ R HRER B AT EURFBM R
SEA WREELSA ERRBEVHREE
EUPACTIDSE=3 =3 (N

R AER B HREE
F15% (1B7]) (B2013F1 818 BAEK)

BB g ER FriSH
F125% (1E5T) (B2012F1 A1 B RBE)

BB ER B BEmEk (B2013F
2758 2011F 1A1B#AR)

EE])

BB g LR BENTRAEE AT
%285 (2011F  (B2013F 1818 RBER)
&5T)

BBV BRELED BE-SREEER
F7% (1B83]) (B2012F1 18 BAE)

ZEMBHREED 2T A (8201551 71R

F95% FRAER)
BBV BRELER LEMBHRE

105k (B2013F1 818 BE)
ERMEHRELER AERHE

£1158 (B2013F1 818 A
BBV BMELER REMER I B HE

125 (B2013F1 A1 £AR)

EBMGREED ARENE
1358 (B2013F1 A 1H#BAER)

AEE W ERE P RWE L FHETREERBA
SRR REAVHRE LR HRBAERB SR
HARBFEMBRELM ZETRRE - TEE
B AT EERHE X FEFTHARBM B kKRR

B2 48R
LR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation
(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies, generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
will be included in the consolidated financial statements
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal (except for acquisition of subsidiaries
under common control which are accounted for using the
principles of merger accounting), as appropriate.

Apart from the application of merger accounting on
those common control combination as disclosed in Note
2.2(c) below, the purchase method of accounting is used
to account for business combination by the Group. The
consideration transferred for an acquisition is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’'s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets. The excess of the aggregate
of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree is less than the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.

2. EXRSTHEHRBE#)

22 #RERE
(@) MEBLAE]

MEBAREASEAEEREMB R EERRDN
EER (BEEBHRENER)  —RIIFEB+
BRERNRE - EXEAKBEREEN S &
BR BAIATEXALANBEEREENTHE
REEBHTER-

RERMKER LS E AR K EKREERA
HEXEEHEEMA L (RIBERME ) 57T AL
BMBHRER (EARZES TREZHERRRA
BofFEERAARESN) o

BRM a2 2() st 8 KRS T A GHR A A 6
ORI WBEFHEDAEAKRE XS 1
AR - WBNHERBENZXZAMMETE
E FEENABRETHORATANARER
B-EERNHERRIAHERMELNE
MEEXBBOHRRE - WEHBBB AR ELER
BRARER EXBaHTMEER#SINEE
ARFAENBERIEGAG BNRERERK
BHRMAREFE - -sLENNEZ KBEEER
5 AKE IR A SERIRIFE IR S R
W EEFENLL P 5T WU TT 80 FEEE S
1ERE R - EEAEIE - T (A SRR I M
AR Z IR B 2 RIS ERE BB
REZEMBBKEREREEFENARE
MBBELEARE - FERNYE REBTEM
FEFE IR R A N 2 BT R Wi 70 2 (E fE s 7
Wi B A B BAHE R FrR BB R BRI & E
FENAAE ZEREREGRARERTER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(@) Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s balance
sheet (Note 2.7). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company in the Company’s income statement to the
extent of dividend received and receivable.

b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with shareholders of the Group. For
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference
between the fair value of consideration paid and the
Group's share of the carrying value of net assets acquired
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

() Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries under common control by the Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses
first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination.

2. EXRSTHEHRBE#)

22 #HREKRE (&)
@ HEBLGE(#&)

SEARARAZRS HHREARBERZXFHET
PASTEE - REIREIBIN T A - B AR 2 &5
BERREGEMBERRPERTEHELHNE - A
PREEANER B PTER M 2 BRSR — B e

EARRZEEABRT MEBRBRETIIZK
AHRBERBEREIIR (#iF2.7) - KK
BEURRENKABLHERELNEEZE S - KA
NERRENEZRBEXNAN -MBARREHAR
RAERE W B R KR B AR R E 2 R R
7 o

(b)  EIFEFEERETHIR S

AEEREEFEFUREETIRIRRES
BERRET 2R -RFEHEERETES
NS B s AREREEEIEMRBEES
Bz REENZENES K- M IEES 2
BETHHE ASEBETRERT LR

© AREH TS
ARSI D G185 R S A ) TR 2 W

NI

REHEHET  ERXRZEFR THSHFELR &
EUMBHRREBREHERAEBNMBRE
BN A G 1) B B 3 RS R 46 B I I 77 mO 2
B TR E LA b

fEZEFTHAE - WEHNBERIRBENEEFE
ABREE S 6 - E L RHE S TR A Gt EL AR
B WBHEIERBEBTAIHREE BEMRK
BRENAAEBBNERANSET TR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(c) Common control combination (Cont'd)

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under common
control, whichever is shorter and regardless of the effective
date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet dates or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All inter-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the
common control combination is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has been
recorded in the merger reserve in consolidated financial
statements.

2. EXRSTHEHRBE#)

2.2 #ZLREEREB (&)
(©  HEZESH T a4 6 (&)

FEMEXRERE - ARSHERIEBNER
BRI ABRREREHERAEBRBX KR
ZHIE (ABOBE RE)NES M AE B HLRE
HTITHEHERBH ZEER:

REMBRRTOLBET CSRRKEHES
FEBCRAEMZIZEERBERALRGBE
HE
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ﬁlJ
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EEHRBEPHE-

==

BX ku\% TN\

HEAZH THEHBENZIUAAN (BEEER
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BIRBEHEENRALIBRE)  REERTA
EHIR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(d) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in
the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets
of the associates, less any identified impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income in consolidated financial
statements. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its investment in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the associate. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The investments in associates are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s balance
sheet. The results of associates are accounted for in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of dividend
received and receivable.

2. EXRSTHEHRBE#)

22 HERE (&)
(O’) Ezﬁ /V\/‘\ ﬂ7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “finance income/
(costs) — net”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
"other gains/(losses) — net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2.

2.4

(©

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

Group companies

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are
taken to other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years (or over the lease

term, whichever is

shorter)
— Plant and machinery 3-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years
— Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised within “other gains/(losses) —
net” in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6 Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of four to five years.

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each balance
sheet date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’'s net
assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into two categories:
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 1 year after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
balance sheet (Notes 2.10 and 2.11).

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
the other category. They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of the investment
within 1 year of the balance sheet date, which are classified
as current assets.

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sale of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets. However, for available-for-sale financial
assets that do not have a quoted market price, the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
possibilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, is stated at cost. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)
2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Cont'd)

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the
financial asset is disposed of or determined to be impaired.
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other gains/(losses) — net” when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established. Interest on available-for-
sale securities calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other gains/(losses) — net”.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. All impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the financial asset is
impaired. If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in income statement
and in equity, is recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised on available-for-sale equity
instruments are not subsequently reversed. For loans and
receivables, impairment loss is reversed to the extent that
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised. Impairment testing of trade and other
receivables is described in Note 2.10.

When available-for-sale securities are sold, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted-
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct
labour, manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in 1 year or less, they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets. Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of receivables. Significant
financial difficulty of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the receivable’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the receivable is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement
within “administrative expenses”. When the receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against “administrative
expenses” in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other financial institutions and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of 3 months or less.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or share options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.13 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Grant relating to an asset is included in non-
current liabilities, which is credited to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful life of the related asset. Grant relating to an
expense item is deferred and recognised as income in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary
to match with the cost that it is intended to compensate.

2.14 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within 1 year or less. If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 1 year after the balance sheet date.

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense comprises current and deferred taxation.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred taxation is not recognised for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred taxation is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.16 Current and deferred taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

2.17 Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow of resources with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if:

(i) That person has control or joint control over
the Group;

(ii) That person has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) That person is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group or of a
parent of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

(ii) The entity is an associate or jointly-controlled
entity of the Group.

(i)  The entity and the Group are jointly-
controlled entities of the same third party.

(iv)  The entity or the Group is a jointly-controlled
entity of third entity and the entity or the
Group is an associate of the same third entity.

(v) The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vij A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.19 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme, the
assets of which are held in separate trustee — administered
funds. The Group’s contributions to MPF Scheme are set at
5% of employees’ salaries and are expensed as incurred.

The Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to make
contribution to staff retirement scheme managed by local
government authorities in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. Contributions to these schemes are
charged to the income statement as and when incurred.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions.

(b) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

() Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 1 year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.19 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(d) Share-based compensation

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. The fair value of the employee services
received is determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options granted at the grant date, excluding
the impact of any non-market service and performance
vesting conditions, and is recognised as an expense with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of share options that are expected to
vest. The total amount expensed is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of share options that are expected to vest. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium. When the share options are cancelled after the
vesting period or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.20 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow of resources
occurs so that the outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts. Revenue is
recognised when the goods are delivered to customers, the
customers have accepted the goods or the product quality
inspection time period has lapsed and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.22 Operating leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.23 Research and development cost

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing
of identifiable and unique software products are recognised
as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

- it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

- it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development of the software product
are available; and

- the expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product cost includes employee costs for software
development and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred.

Other development costs that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, which does not exceed five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Final dividends proposed by the board of directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained earnings
within the equity section of the balance sheet, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in an annual
general meeting. When these dividends have been
declared by the board of directors and approved by the
shareholders, they are recognised as a liability.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred due
to the fact that the Group had some business activities
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group's business
activities are primarily exposed to foreign exchange risk
in respect of Renminbi (“RMB"”) against Hong Kong
dollar ("HK dollar”) and RMB against United States dollar
("US dollar”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency. In additions, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against HK
dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2011 would have been
HK$545,000 higher/lower (2010: HK$5,879,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or
losses on translation of RMB denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against US
dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2011 would have been
HK$3,931,000 lower/higher (2010: HK$414,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or
losses on translation of US dollar denominated cash and
cash equivalents.

As less than 10% of the Group’s foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign currencies,
the directors are of the view that foreign exchange risk
in relation to transactions denominated in other foreign
currencies is low. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis for these
currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Other than deposits held in banks and other financial
institutions, the Group does not have significant interest-
bearing assets. The average rate on deposits held in banks
and other financial institutions at 31 December 2011
was approximately 1.18% per annum (2010: 1.07%).
Any change in the interest rate from time to time is not
considered to have significant impact to the Group’s
performance.

The Group's interest rate risk which affects its results and
operating cash flows mainly arises from bank borrowings.
The bank borrowings were at fixed rates and expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. As all the Group’s
bank borrowings were short term loans and any change in
the interest rate from time to time is not considered to have
significant impact to the Group’s performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the balance sheet date is their carrying value. The Group
has policies and procedures in place to ensure they are
made to counterparties with acceptable credit quality.

All the Group’s deposits with bank and other financial
institution are placed in high quality financial institutions
without significant exposure to credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of the
credit quality. Given the constant repayment history, the
directors are of the opinion that the risk of default by these
counterparties is not significant. Further disclosure on credit
risk are set out in Note 20.

(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including maintaining
sufficient working capital, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed borrowing
facilities and the ability to close out market positions is
adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
ensuring sufficient committed borrowing facilities are
available.

3. BHXERERE#)

31 HMBRBEZE(Z)
© 1EEERE

AR E LS E R 2 EEAR EHERER
SRESSEMNE S R B IAT & 4 o
NEEREY 2SS ERARALERE A%
HEETRFREE BRRSHZEHEEA
A DA E A

AEBEMAERRITREMT BB 2 FRAFER
VTESAEERRZBEMGEHE-

REZIMEMBKRFEMNS XZEFZ2EEE
ZEBEBEMBIN EEREREMERM
fEHFE - EREERBRREEERFMEMAT
EoERNREZENGCE EFRRLFTXZEHT
RKEZRERIE NN - BEEERRZE—F
AHIRE M 204 ©

@ HEELER

AEBRMNBEZADECARERE BHREBR
RN THLEES RO IEAHEEEREN
REZEAHIRESCRBEEMBFRZEN

AHBRAZEAXRBERRAR EUAERESH
ez BIEE-

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The table below analyses the Group'’s financial liabilities by
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows and are as follows:

3. BIRRERE#)

31 MBERBREE(Z)
@ mEBETER (&

TR AEEHEE 2 RAE bR RAE
FAZIHAR REAEERESQINHA 2 FER
HFETOM - RRTFEBEZSBAREANHZ
ABBRBREREFE WO

31 December 31 December

2011 2010
Within 1 year —FR 2011124318 20106 12A31H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Group AEE
Short term bank loans HHRTER 26,316 24,637
Trade and other payables B 5 & E A e I8 319,510 283,515
345,826 308,152

Company /N
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H M e RIE 3,069 2,402

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes bank borrowings, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, which comprises issued equity
and reserves.

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in
the consolidated balance sheets, plus net debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont'd)

The Group's strategy is to maintain an operation with
minimal capital risk. As at 31 December 2011, the Group's
cash and cash equivalents exceeded its borrowings by
HK$304,783,000 (2010: HK$243,781,000). The directors
are of the opinion that the Group’s capital risk is low.

3.3  Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are grouped
into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable, as follows:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had no
financial instrument measured at fair value and hence
did not have any Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 financial
instrument.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables approximate their fair values. The
fair values of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

(a) Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether non-financial assets,
mainly property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets have suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.7. Management
judgment is required, particularly in assessing whether:
(1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2)
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net
present value of future cash flows from the asset using
estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flow
is discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the
level of impairment (if any), including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could significantly affect the Group’s reported financial
condition and results of operations. In performing the
impairment assessment, the Group has also considered
the impact of the current economic environment on the
operations of the Group.

(b) Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different jurisdictions.
Estimation and judgment is required in determining
the amount of the provision for income tax. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred taxation provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

In accordance with the enterprise income tax laws in
the PRC, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the
dividend declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors starting from 1 January
2008. No deferred tax liability has been provided by the
Group for the earnings of approximately HK$268,000,000
(2010: HK$140,000,000) expected to be retained by the
subsidiaries in the PRC and not to be remitted out of the
PRC in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a) Revenue

5. WARZHEHR

@ WA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Integrated circuits products EXEKE M 995,111 574,586

(b) Operating segments

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the directors (the
chief operating decision maker) that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources.

The directors consider that the Group’s operations are
operated and managed as a single segment, accordingly no
segment information is presented.

In terms of geographical location, nearly 100% of the
Group's revenue is attributable to the market in the PRC
and over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets are
located in the PRC.

Total non-current assets by location are as follows:

(b) EESE

EEECRBEES (TE2E Lﬁﬁ%)ﬂ%ﬁﬁ{’ﬁﬁ
ERRAEDEERBORE EELED -

EERRAKEREZEBUNE— D 2B
B EEEDRER

K&

B

BB HmE  AREZEII100% 2 WAKER
FETS EBEI0% ZIFRDEEMNTE -

RSB FMBEEMLTELT

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

2011%12A831H 2010F12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TATT

PRC s 22,908 27,982

Hong Kong BB 828 110

23,736 28,092

Deferred tax assets RALTRIE & B 28,560 20,999
Total non-current assets per RiFEEERBRZ

consolidated balance sheet ERHEELRT 52,296 49,091
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

6. OTHER GAINS - NET

6. HiWkz—FE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Government grants A 48 BN 28,772 18,519
Share of loss of an associate DEEE N REE (253) (227)
Gain on disposal of an associate BB QW& 1,053 -

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, HEME - BE kREkE

plant and equipment (E8) 619 (59)
Exchange gains PE 5 W e 585 2,948
Others HAfb 468 95
31,244 21,276

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
disposed of its entire interest in an associate to
an independent third party at a consideration of
RMB1,100,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,323,000)
and recognised gain on disposal of HK$1,053,000.

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing
costs and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

HE201MF12A31BIEEFEE  REBUARE
1,100,0007T (#8E M 41,323,000/ 7T ) 2 B
E%*ﬁ&ﬁ%%—é@ﬂz HERHETFBIE=S
A FERR H & U5 1,053,000 7T ©

7. BRMEIADZEA

SIVESH & AR A ~ $HE K T 5 HE B A AR R TT B X2
ZEBERAMMT:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Depreciation and amortisation expenses TEREHEER
(Notes 15 and 16) (Kiat15K16) 14,363 14,414
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EERAFEZ (H:£8) 101,462 79,993
Changes in inventories of finished goods ko R AE S m
and work in progress FE&E) (16,165) (184,918)
Raw materials and consumables used Fir B TR A4 L BB 7 668,807 536,289
Research and development costs* T 9t K R B pl A * 138,969 93,935
Impairment provision for trade receivables & 5 & U 3k 18 7 B (B B 8
(Note 20) (Htz320) 14,071 1,476
Write-down of inventories to MR FEZER 2IR)%E
net realisable value (Note 19) (H1a£19) 8,345 8,216
Operating lease expenses on property MEZKEHRERX 6,459 6,454
Auditor’s remuneration % S5 B BN 1,585 1,205
* Research and development costs for the year ended 31 & ELE2010F 1231 HIFFEZ HAERFZEHAE

December 2010 have been reclassified to administrative
expenses to be consistent with current year’s presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8. EEFTAREX
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2011 2010
201145 20104
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TATT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYRET 92,812 72,058
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRET IR
(Notes (a) and (b)) (KiaE@) b)) 8,650 7,935
101,462 79,993
(@)  The Group operates a MPF Scheme for the eligible (@) AEEREALCEREBRLABESA

employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions
to MPF Scheme are set at 5% of employees’ salaries
and are expensed as incurred.

(b) The Company's PRC subsidiaries participate in (b)

defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible for
the pension liabilities to these retired employees in
the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries made contributions
to retirement schemes in the PRC and are expensed
as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2011 is set out below:

9. EEBREEM=

(@) ES#H=

BEENEHZE2011F12A31BIEFE 2B &5
R

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Discretionary
Name of Director Fees #< - 2HR ENRESFHE bonus Total
EEpgE Be BENER it BERA a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THERT THERT
Rui Xiaowu* PR 244 - - - 244
Xiong Qunli** RERE 7 ** 394 - - - 394
Zhao Guiwu HER 200 - - - 200
Fan Qingwu SEIEA - 520 88 480 1,088
Liu Jinping 2)&F 200 - - - 200
Chan Kay Cheung PRI S 200 - - - 200
Wong Po Yan F=IRR 200 - - - 200
Yin Yongli F oK F 200 - - - 200
1,638 520 88 480 2,726
* Appointed on 5 August 2011. & M201158ASHEZ(F -

** Resigned on 5 August 2011.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors of the Company had waived
any emoluments during the year.

B R2011F8 ASH BT ©
FR - ANEBWE R AR REEZ(TERBNSIES

MRS EK AR 2 BBV ESRHEZHE-
FATERARRESTHEEAME -

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2010 is set out below:

9. EEKkEEME &)

(@) E=M= (&)

BEENEHZE2010F12A31BIEFE 2B &5
R

Salaries,

allowances Pension

and benefits scheme

in kind  contributions
Name of Director Fees #o EBh  EARE5FE Total
EEHA we KREDRER = &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHETT FHETT FHAT
Xiong Qunli ARFET) 660 - - 660
Zhao Guiwu* HER* 100 - - 100
Tong Baoan** BARE ** 275 - - 275
Fan Qingwu SBE - 520 62 582
Liu Jinping* 25 T+ 100 = = 100
Hua Longxing** EERE 100 = = 100
Chan Kay Cheung BRI E 200 - - 200
Wong Po Yan =R 200 - - 200
Yin Yongli FoK A 200 - - 200
1,835 520 62 2,417

3 Appointed on 19 July 2010. i M2010F7 B 19HEZ £

*x Resigned on 19 July 2010.
(b) Five highest paid individuals
The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose

paid were the highest in the Group during the year are as
follows:

Wk 20107 B 198 BHT -

(b) EBESHHAL
FRENTFTAEETFHMGS 2 A2 AT 2B & 0
T

Year ended 31 December

HZ12B31BLEE
2011 2010
201145 20104
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FBT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R MEYES 3,413 4,453
Bonuses TE4T 4,145 2,338
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRETEIH R 228 175
7,786 6,966
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd)

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one (2010: nil) director of the Company and their

emoluments were within the following bands:

9. EEKkEEME &)

(b) TZEBEFMAL(E)

hERERFMALTEBREARAN —% (20105
B)EEMREZMENFUATEE:

Number of individuals

AE
2011 2010
20115 20104
Nil — HK$1,000,000 2= — 1,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000 7T 1 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T 4 1
5 5
10. FINANCE INCOME - NET 10. BLEWA-—FE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLLEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHIT
Interest income on short term deposits SR-EREECIISN PN 2,928 2,742
Interest on bank loans RITERF B (1.646) (1,109)
1,282 1,633

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

11. TAXATION 11. %\
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FETT
Current taxation AREFERIE
— PRC enterprise income tax —HRE B EMER 22,955 10,639
Deferred taxation RAER IR (6,385) (7,454)
16,570 3,185

(@  No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been (@) HBHRAASERAEFEARBBNEELT

made as the Group did not generate any assessable

profit in Hong Kong during the year (2010: nil). B (20105 - 4 ) -

o] FE SR 8 A - B | BB RS BAE B

(b)  In accordance with the enterprise income tax laws by WBEFBETGEMSHZE EARNETH2008

in the PRC, Huada Electronics’ applicable statutory
tax rate is 25% from 1 January 2008. However,
Huada Electronics qualified as a “High/New

Technology Enterprise” and thus was granted a H318%

15% preferential tax rate from 1 January 2008 to
31 December 2013.

FIRAIHRBRZERZEEME B25% A
M AREREFHEER [ BHBRED
¥ | EItB2008F1A1H £ E20134F12
EFEXI5% 2 EBEEHE

(0 Reconciliation between the taxation expense on the (0 AEEBRBATRMNZMERYEHIEZSSE

Group's profit before taxation and the theoretical
taxation that would arise using the respective
applicable statutory tax rates are as follows:

FRIEEREMAE 2 EmBIAHRIAT

Year ended 31 December

B Z12A31BLLFEE
2011 2010
20114 20104F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit before taxation x5 B A 131,229 63,126
Calculated at respective applicable REBBREEME
statutory tax rates STE 1A 33,542 16,660
Effect of tax concession IR % < 28 (14,412) (7,383)
Research and development 5t & &
costs additional deductions XA RE SN BR (5,567) (8,233)
Expenses not deductible for kL
taxation purposes X 520 344
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses  f§ F3 7 Al A fE R ) i 1B &5 18 (17) -
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WEBREEHIEEE L
asset was recognised (Note (d) MIEBE (AiEd)) 2,504 1,797
Taxation expense MIERAX 16,570 3,185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

11. TAXATION (Cont'd)

(d) Deferred taxation

The movements in the deferred tax assets during the year is
as follows:

11. BB (#)
(d) EZEHE

FREERAEEZ BBWT

Impairment Other
of accruals Government

inventories Hity grants Others Total
FERE HRRER BUS# B Hity &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2010 ®20105181A8 271 4,989 6,977 684 12,921
Exchange differences fERER 38 210 333 43 624
Credited to the income statement % % Yz & 1,195 1,556 3,891 812 7,454
At 31 December 2010 ®2010%F12831H 1,504 6,755 11,201 1,539 20,999
At 1 January 2011 R2011E181A8 1,504 6,755 11,201 1,539 20,999
Exchange differences N Z5 101 343 560 172 1,176
Credited to the income statement &z E 1,252 409 211 4,513 6,385
At 31 December 2011 R2011%512831H 2,857 7,507 11,972 6,224 28,560

The amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet
include the following:

REREERBERITZEBERNATIER:

31 December 31 December

2011 2010
2011%12A31H 20104F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Deferred tax assets to be #1218 A 18 Bl 2
recovered after more than 12 months RIEFIEE = 2,939 730
Deferred tax assets to be B EN 1218 A A dE 2
recovered within 12 months RIEFIAE B 25,621 20,269
28,560 20,999

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of
HK$2,504,000 (2010: HK$1,797,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$12,992,000 (2010: HK$10,701,000) that
can be carried forward against future taxable income.

EEMBEETEE 2 HIBEIEMEER - I
ERREBBARR EART&FIEIREEAREN=
BBR o AN B3 R HL AT A5 8 LA 38 R R I AR B i A
Z E51812,992,000/%8 T (20104 : 10,701,000/
7T ) W SRR T F 78 B 2,504,000 7T (20104 :
1,797,000 7¢ ) °

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

12. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 included a
loss of HK$10,808,000 (2010: HK$10,326,000) which has
been dealt with in the separate financial statements of the
Company.

13. DIVIDENDS

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010: nil).

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
is based on the following data:

12. XAFAESEFEERLER

HE2011F12A31BIEFE AR EaEAE
R A RN B EET ARRR B L ERR 2
& 18 £10,808,000,%8 7T (20104 : 10,326,000/
JC) °©

13. BRE

BEETERRNEE201ME12831BIEEFEZ
REARE B (20104 : %) o

14. BRER
FREAREERF BB TS E:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
Profit for the year attributable to RARERFFEE
owners of the Company (HK$'000) JE 15 2 S E % T
(FA&7T) 114,659 59,941
Weighted average number of ordinary AU EZRER
shares for the purposes of basic and NESERA 2 EiBR
diluted earnings per share INHEF 8B 1,691,560,000 1,691,560,000
Earnings per share (HK cents) FREREF GBI
— Basic —HK 6.78 3.54
— Diluted (Notes (a) and (b)) — 858 (W a@)Fm) 6.78 3.54

(a) The Company did not have any potential ordinary
shares outstanding for the year ended 31 December
2011. Diluted earnings per share is therefore equal
to basic earnings per share.

(b) Impact of exercise of share options were not
included in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2010
because their exercise would result in an increase in
earnings per share, and are anti-dilutive.

(@) EHZE2011F128318 IEFE  KNA [ i &
ERARBTBELBR - At SR ER
MEFRERBFFEE -

(b) HRITEBRESENSRAF BT
FERELEEREENE WEAEHE
201012 A31H L FE B REE R N5 -
WESITEBREZEFTEERN-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

15. V¥ BERRE

(@) Group (@) #&H
Leasehold Plant and Motor  Furniture and
improvements machinery vehicles fixtures Total
HEWERE RERKE Ef  GRR%E &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THIT THT THT
At 1 January 2010 201051818
Cost XA 5,013 29,065 3,492 445 38,015
Accumulated depreciation e (484) (12,894) (1,939) (364) (15,681)
Net book amount REFE 4,529 16,171 1,553 81 22,334
Year ended 31 December 2010 & Z2010F12831H
EEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 4,529 16,171 1,553 81 22,334
Exchange differences fEHZ5 118 518 93 1 730
Additions RE = 3,716 2,574 50 6,340
Disposals HE = = (284) = (284)
Depreciation e (1,696) (5,593) (533) (45) (7,867)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 2,951 14,812 3,403 87 21,253
At 31 December 2010 #2010%12831H
Cost PR 5,131 33,645 5,334 492 44,602
Accumulated depreciation e (2,180) (18,833) (1,931) (405) (23,349)
Net book amount EmFE 2,951 14,812 3,403 87 21,253
Year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011512831A
LLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 2,951 14,812 3,403 87 21,253
Exchange differences R =T 14 873 146 4 1,137
Additions RE 134 3,469 2,194 180 5,977
Disposals HE - (5,737) - ®3) (5,740)
Depreciation & (1,585) (2,950) (1,064) (40) (5,639)
Closing net book amount FRERFAE 1,614 10,467 4,679 228 16,988
At 31 December 2011 RW2011E12A318
Cost %N 5,433 23,583 7,872 677 37,565
Accumulated depreciation 2EtE (3,819) (13,116) (3,193) (449) (20,577)
Net book amount EEFE 1,614 10,467 4,679 228 16,988

Depreciation expense of nil (2010: HK$2,614,000) has
been expensed in cost of sales, HK$29,000 (2010:
HK$279,000) in selling and marketing costs and
HK$5,610,000 (2010: HK$4,974,000) in administrative

expenses.

Lease rental expenses amounting to HK$6,459,000 (2010:
HK$6,454,000) relating to the lease of property are
included in the income statement.

FEMSTEE R (20104 : 2,614,000/ 7T ) 5+
ASHE A 29,0007 7T (20104 : 279,000/
TL)EFTAHEERMSHEKA + %5,610,000/%
7C (20104F : 4,974,000/ 7T) Bzt ATT B X »

ERFH E Y ¥ 6,459,000 oS (20104
6,454,000/ L) Est Al R 2 HHER X -

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. YE BENSZE &)
(Cont'd)
(b) Company (b) A&QF
Leasehold Motor  Furniture and
improvements vehicles fixtures Total
HEMELE B ERREE =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT FHIT FHBT
At 1 January 2010 M2010F181H
Cost XA 220 1,310 204 1,734
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (220) (1,164) (148) (1,532)
Net book amount REFE - 146 56 202
Year ended 31 December 2010 HZ2010FE128310 LEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE - 146 56 202
Additions NE - - 50 50
Disposals HE = (38) = (38)
Depreciation e = (78) 31 (109)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - 30 75 105
At 31 December 2010 #2010F12A31H
Cost (DN 220 1,176 250 1,646
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (220) (1,146) (175) (1,541)
Net book amount REFE - 30 75 105
Year ended 31 December 2011 HZ201M1E12B831ALEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE - 30 75 105
Exchange differences ERER - (1 4 3
Additions NE - 544 Al 615
Disposals HE - - (3) (3)
Depreciation e - (102) 27 (129)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - an 120 591
At 31 December 2011 M2011%12A831H8
Cost BN 220 1,877 325 2,422
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (220) (1,406) (205) (1,831)
Net book amount REFE - a7 120 591
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e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 16. BEEE-FKHE
Computer
software
=S4
HK$'000
TATT
At 1 January 2010 720101818
Cost [N 17,702
Accumulated amortisation S 3 (13,718)
Net book amount SR FE 3,984
Year ended 31 December 2010 B Z2010F12831B L FE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 3,984
Exchange differences bE X, = 5E 134
Additions NE 6,384
Amortisation N (6,547)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 3,955
At 31 December 2010 #2010%12831H
Cost PR AR 24,850
Accumulated amortisation S 3 (20,895)
Net book amount SRR E 3,955
Year ended 31 December 2011 BZE2011F12831BLEE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 3,955
Exchange differences M H =58 11
Additions INE 9,039
Amortisation N (8,724)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 4,281
At 31 December 2011 M2011%F12H831H
Cost %N 35,121
Accumulated amortisation R T (30,840)
Net book amount BREFE 4,281

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. MBEARKRE-AXLQF
- COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
20114128318 2010612H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Investments — unlisted equity interests, RE—JFFEETAREE-
at cost TR AN E 646,729 553,280
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (b)) RSB EB A Rk IE (A7t b)) 11,700 11,700
658,429 564,980
Less: provision for impairment R B R - -
658,429 564,980
(@)  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 (a) TEMBARN2011FK%2010F12A318
December 2011 and 2010 are as follows: ZEIBAT
Registered and
Place of establishment Principal place of paid-in capital
Name and type of legal entity operation and activities R EW Interest held
“18 BB R A RS TELEMBRER N Fiisres
At 31 December 2011:
H2011F12/318 :
CEC Integrated Circuit PRC, limited liability PRC, design, research and US$12,000,000 100%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd* company development and sale 12,000,000 T (Directly)
HEERER (IER) HE GREEAH of integrated circuits (E%)
BRAR]* B SR E R A
e RS
Huada Electronics PRC, limited liability PRC, design, research and RMB50,000,000 100%
EAEF company development and sale AR #50,000,0007T (Directly)
HE - BREEAR of integrated circuits (B#%)
i B2 R
e REE

* It was newly established by the Company in March 2071.
B R AHAERAR2011E3[HT

At 31 December 2010:
R2010F12531H -
Huada Electronics PRC, limited liability PRC, design, research and RMB50,000,000 100%
ERET company development and sale A K #50,000,0007T (Directly)
HE BRETAR of integrated circuits (E&)
B SR E R ZRET
e REE
(b)  The amounts due from subsidiaries are quasi-equity (b) EERNBARNREBLEE=HE HAEE
in nature, unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed w28 BEETER-

term of repayment.
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e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS - GROUP

Available-for-sale financial assets represent unlisted equity
interest in companies established in the PRC and are
measured at costs less impairment at balance sheet date, as
these assets do not have a quoted market price, the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
possibilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed.

19. INVENTORIES - GROUP

18. AHHEEHEE-F&E

AHHESREEREPEKRILI I EHRAIN
Pk ROR BRI LASI BB IS ER - B AETH
AAERRBBAMBEESE AT ZEERRAA L
1 ERAEE BARARRBRER G E -

19. FE-XKE

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

20115128318 2010%12H31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Work in progress £ 8o 49,244 63,080
Finished goods BIFK om 219,213 198,232
268,457 261,312

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$652,642,000 (2010:
HK$351,371,000).

Provision for inventories of HK$8,345,000 (2010:
HK$8,216,000) has been charged to cost of sales.

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

RBAXLFAFEXRARAZFEKRAER R
652,642,000 7t (20104 : 351,371,000/ 7T ) °

A 818,345,000 7T (20104F : 8,216,0007 7T ) 2
GFEBREBETAHESEKA -

20. EZREMEWKE

Group Company
rEE ¥ /N
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
20115128318 20104F12A31H 2011%12H31B 20104 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHT FET FAT
Trade receivables B 2 WA 417,770 268,312 - =
Less: provision for impairment & ¢ BB B
(Note (c)) (Hizz(c)) (19,295) (4,692) - -
398,475 263,620 - -
Other receivables from related ~ E fth fE U Ea s A £+
parties (Note 29) TIE (Hfat29) 134 - 218 =
Prepayments and deposits B KB RZE 2,723 7,871 513 523
Value-added tax refundable ARE 2B ER - 6,289 - =
Other receivables H A W k1A 3,340 2,678 8 261
404,672 280,458 739 784

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Cont'd)

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the carrying amounts of

trade a

nd other receivables of the Group and the Company

approximate their fair values.

All trade and other receivables were due within 1 year, non
interest-bearing and unsecured. Included in the balance of
trade receivables are trade receivables from related parties

of HK$

16,239,000 (2010: HK$20,118,000) (Note 29).

Trade and other receivables of the Group at 31 December

200 EFZREMEWRRIE (&)

M2011E K20105F12 8318 ZEB RA AR 2
ESNEMERFIBAZREREEERAAERS -

FIBE S REMBWFIEYN —FREEH WEE
STEREERA - GFAERSEBUGRELEHAZEIK
RAEE A+ & 5 FIE 516,239,000/ 7T (20104 :
20,118,000/ 7T) (Hfit29) °

ANEBER20114F K2010F12A31B 28 5 K H

2011 and 2010 are denominated in the following MEWNRERES ST
currencies:
Group Company
r&5E ¥ NG
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
2011%12H318 20109128318 2011F12A318 2010124318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAET TART FAET
Renminbi ARHE 399,727 279,708 231 198
US dollar x 3,420 = - =
HK dollar BT 1,525 750 508 586
404,672 280,458 739 784

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit
terms of 30 days to 135 days. The remaining
amounts are due immediately after the delivery of
goods. At 31 December 2011, the ageing analysis
of the trade receivables (net of provision for
impairment) are as follows:

(@) AEEZHEHERNBMHZEEHA308E135
He EARHENE R REIHE - R20114F
128318 Z 5 EWFRIE (R R E B )
ZERE DT :

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

20111248318 20109124318

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Current to 30 days 30HA 270,298 113,678
31 - 60 days 31HZE60H 24,256 56,515
Over 60 days and within 1 year 60B LA ERI1FA 102,117 92,936
Over 1 year 1A 1,804 491
398,475 263,620
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e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20, EZRHAMEBWRIE2)
(Cont'd)

(b)  The trade receivables which were past due but (b) 2011412831 H B %@ H18 17 & & &
not impaired amounted to HK$43,078,000 at 31 2 B 5 N 3RI8 £43,078,0007%8 7T (2010
December 2011 (2010: HK$31,964,000). These £ :31,964,000/870) - L E 8 5 EWFKIA
related to a number of customers with high TR F W EERFIELH 2 EER
reputation for whom there is no recent history HEFPER HERERIWHOT :

of default, the ageing analysis of these trade
receivables are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
20115%12H31H 2010%F12H831H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
31 - 60 days 31HZ60H 29,137 9,518
Over 60 days and within 1 year 60B LA ER1FER 12,137 21,955
Over 1 year 1A+ 1,804 491
43,078 31,964
The other classes within trade and other receivables B 5 & H At FE UK IA A 2 B Ath F8 51 I A& A
do not contain impaired assets. EREEE-
(0  Movements in the provision for impairment on the (0 AEEEZEWFTIERERE 2ESHWNT
Group's trade receivables are as follows:
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
2011%12H318H 2010412H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Beginning of the year F1 4,692 3,075
Provision for impairment BE R 14,071 1,476
Exchange difference ME H, = R 532 141
End of the year FR 19,295 4,692
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SPN 2
meEMBEHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. RERBEEEY
Group Company
REE AATE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
20115128318 20109F12A31H 20115128318 2010412H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHET TET FHET
Cash e
At banks and on hand RITEFAER® 167,756 36,217 9,567 4,435
At other financial institutions ~ H B iS5 # 417
— A related party (Note 29) — AT
(H15%29) 29,874 - 24,670 -
197,630 36,217 34,237 4,435
Short term deposits RETER
At banks RITHETT 63,017 137,053 11,202 125,518
At other financial institutions ~— H B FS#E 4 TF
— A related party (Note 29) — AT
(K1:%29) 68,806 94,015 49,340 70,511
131,823 231,068 60,542 196,029
329,453 267,285 94,779 200,464

The effective interest rate on short term deposits at 31
December 2011 was 1.18% (2010: 1.07%) per annum.
The maturity days of these deposits at 31 December 2011

were all within 90 days.

22. ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Issued equity — Group

R2011FE12A31H BHERZ2EREN XA
1.18% (20104 : 1.07% ) ° FA2011412H31H »
ZEEFERZINHPHBY AEOBA -

22. CRITER BRE
() OBRITEZ-—~&£H

Number of shares

Issued equity

KROHE ERITER
‘000 HK$'000
T FHT
At 1 January 2010 and R2010F1 18 &
at 31 December 2010 2010512 H31H 1,691,560 889,171
At 1 January 2011 and R2011F1818 &
at 31 December 2011 M2011$12H31H 1,691,560 889,171
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL
(Cont'd)

Issued equity — Group (Cont'd)

The number of shares reflect the Company’s
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each issued and fully
paid.

On 10 December 2003, CEC, the Company,
the Company's then holding company, Winsan
International Holdings Limited entered into a
sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company acquired CEC's 65%
equity interest in Shenzhen Sang Fei Consumer
Communications Company Limited (“Sang Fei”) (the
"“Acquisition”) and the consideration was satisfied
by the issuance of the Company’s 6,500,000,000
shares to CEC. The Acquisition was completed on
24 September 2004 and has been accounted for
as a reverse acquisition. For accounting purpose,
Sang Fei was regarded as the acquirer while the
Company and its then subsidiaries were deemed to
have been acquired by Sang Fei. Accordingly, the
amount recognised as issued equity of the Group,
which consisted of share capital and share premium,
has been determined by adding to the issued equity
of Sang Fei immediately before the completion of
the Acquisition the cost of the acquisition of the
Company and its then subsidiaries.

22,

(a)

(i)

(i)

BRTER R (4)

CRTEE-F%E8 (&)

OB E RBARFFREEOIEITLZ
BEITAEEEBA-

200312108 - HEHEFERE K
NAIRARAAEFAIERRERRWinsan
International Holdings Limited%&] — 7 &
Bz oREBEZBE AQFRKEREE
FEERRINEZFEHEBEBERAG ([F
JE1)HIES %R AR ([WHEIR]) - T
MrEEE #E BT A7]6,500,000,000
BREROTHEEFER 25 AT WHE
FIEER2004F9 A24 A B/ « WHAR 1E—
I8 R B - ?fﬁ@%ﬁu%ﬁﬁ 5 RIFFHRIEW
BA MARAREERHB QA8
RIERRIEWEE - At - R ANEE D #
TSR (BEREAEEBRNRE) IR
EEWESETKAIRIEN S BETER M
WEARRREER 2B R R& KA
BE -

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

22,

(a)

(iii)

(b)

ISSUED EQUITY/SHARE CAPITAL
(Cont'd)

Issued equity — Group (Cont'd)

Upon the completion of the acquisition of the
entire equity interests of Huada Electronics (“Huada
Acquisition”) on 9 September 2009, 608,000,000
shares were allotted and issued, credited as fully
paid, to the then shareholders of Huada Electronics
as consideration shares at a price of HK$0.91
per share. The total consideration amounting to
HK$553,280,000 was presented as an increase
in share capital of HK$6,080,000 and increase
in share premium of HK$547,200,000 in the
separate financial statements of the Company in
2009. For accounting purpose, the 393,680,000
shares issued to China Huada as part of the Huada
Acquisition were presented as if they had been
issued at the previous balance sheet dates presented
using the principles of merger accounting as
prescribed in HKAG 5, and the opening balance
of the issued equity of the Group had been
increased by HK$358,249,000 in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. The remaining
214,320,000 shares issued to the other then
shareholders of Huada Electronics were accounted
for as transactions with non-controlling interests,
and the total consideration of HK$195,031,000 was
presented as an increase in the issued equity of the
Group on 9 September 2009.

Share capital - Company

22. CRITERBRE (#)

() CBRITEZE-F£E(#F)

(i)  M2009F9A9RKBEARE T2 BRA
Em ([ZERAKE]) TXE  ARRIEERS
RONBLZEBRAERFZERNEFRE
it 2% & 277 & $£608,000,0008% % 17 (A
RIVEBRIIEAEERD ZBHES
553,280,000/ 7T * 7 5 2517420094 2 A<
N EVE M B I #R 3k 2 AR AR E A06,080,000/%
JC K B 15 S5 (B #8 A1547,200,00058 T ° E &
FIREME EARBPBITLEPREKX
2393,680,000 D EIRB B EHE3IF
SSRFTilz A EERANERYER A
ERERMZVNZEERBRBERAERIT H
REEBEZINRAEBGEEMBRRE 2
AEB B BT IE HN358,249,00078 7T °
1T T 2214,320,0000% &0 46 & iF 2 &
I REFAR R AR A IS i s i
THRGZAERERE HEHELE
BAREER2009F9H9H B 1T HE 25 8 N
195,031,000/% 7T ©

(b) BAE-—ARAF

Ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each

BREE0.01ETZ
EBER
Issued and Share

Authorised fully paid  Share capital premium Total
EE BROIREE & B 4335 8 Bt
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FHTT FHT FBT

At 1 January 2010 and 201051 818 &
at 31 December 2010 72010612 A31H 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 872,255 889,171

At 1 January 2011 and B2011F1 A1 R
at 31 December 2011 R2011512831H 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 872,255 889,171
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

23. OTHER RESERVES 23. Hftuf#E
Group ANE
Share
Capital Surplus option  Translation Merger Other
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
BARGE BHRE BRERE EXRE  SHRE  HtHE CEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THL T T FHT THL
Note (a) Note (b) Note (c) Note (d) Note (e)
it it b) (e} Hiit ) Hiitte)
At 1 January 2010 201051818 930 16,309 3,046 29,608 (327,605) (69,130) (346,842)
Share option lapsed B RERE - = (3,046) = = = (3,046)
Currency translation differences EEBmEEHE - - - 8,517 - = 8,517
At 31 December 2010 #2010612A31H 930 16,309 - 38,125 (327,605) (69,130) (341,371)
At 1 January 2011 W2011E1581A 930 16,309 - 38,125 (327,605) (69,130) (341,371)
Currency translation differences BBHEEE - - - 20,133 - - 20,133
Reclassification Exiipayt (930) - - - - 930 -
At 31 December 2011 20115128310 - 16,309 - 58,258 (327,605) (68,200) (321,238)
(@) Capital reserve () EBEAXRRFEE
Capital reserve represented the exchange differences arising BEARRBEIKIFRIINEBRERAMEELE CER
from foreign currencies received for Sang Fei’s paid-in EHe
capital.
(b)  Surplus reserve (b) ZHErEE

According to the laws and regulations of the PRC and
enterprise’s articles of association, the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to provide for certain statutory
funds, namely, general reserve fund and enterprise
expansion fund, which are appropriated from profit after
taxation but before dividend distribution based on the
local statutory accounts prepared in accordance with
accounting principles and relevant financial regulations
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10% of its
profit after taxation to the reserve fund until the balance
of such fund has reached 50% of its registered capital.
Such appropriations are determined at the discretion
of the board of directors. The general reserve fund can
only be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to
offset accumulated deficit or increase capital. Enterprise
expansion fund can be used to expand production or to
increase capital.

BREBEFBUEELER  UREEZARER AR
RAETEZHMBARAMRE TEEES 55l
R—RERESMEFERES HAREET
Bt RE R 2 &5 R AR AR M BE R M AR
S BEEERB T EZ B RERTREBRE DK
23 A AR ER o 1tk T A BB B 2 B A S B AR
MEDIO%DEEFHEES BEELRBESHE
HREEHFMEARZS0% B LERFBES
ENEET - —REGRESEEARERMAER
AR AR ERIEMER - EXRERE
SR ARBREESIENER-

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

23. OTHER RESERVES (cont'd)
Group (Cont'd)

(c) Share option reserve

For the year ended 31 December 2010, 4,350,000 share
options lapsed and an amount of HK$3,046,000 was
transferred from share option reserve to retained earnings.

(d) Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the fair
value of the consideration shares issued to China Huada
and the 64.75% of paid-in capital of Huada Electronics
acquired from China Huada under common control.

(e) Other reserve

The amount recognised in other reserve includes the
difference between the issued equity immediately before
the disposal of Sang Fei (BVI) Company Limited and its
subsidiaries and share capital and share premium of the
Company, plus other reserve shared from Sang Fei upon
the completion of the disposal; and the difference between

23. HitfEE =)

reEME (&)
(0 BRERE

RE E2010F12A8318 IEF E © 4,350,00017 B&
5% B 50 > 3,046,000 7T H BB AL HE b BE =
REBEF -

d) &oHHE

BOHREEIEERRES TRITEAPEEAHER
MZARERREREERRFE 264 75%FEAE
FTEWREARZEZRE -

(e) Hitbf#E

FEE M FE PR 2 &3 EE L & Sang Fei (BVI)
Company Limited & EHIEB A 7] A 2 B 21T o 2
RABBRARBMDEEZ Z5 M EREHETK
BOMBIFZEMEER REWBEKRETIEE
RS R MBI TERE FIEEH MR
ZHERBZ AR EREERBLFIKEERE T

the fair value of consideration shares issued to non- ZEEFERAEIER-
controlling interests of Huada Electronics for the acquisition
of their interest in Huada Electronics and the Group's share
of the carrying value of net assets of Huada Electronics
acquired.
Company b N/NE|
Contributed  Share option
surplus reserve Total
BEAEL% BRERE CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET
At 1 January 2010 201051818 61,672 3,046 64,718
Share option lapsed BB - (3,046) (3,046)
At 31 December 2010 720105128318 61,672 - 61,672
At 1 January 2011 and R011FE1818 K
at 31 December 2011 M2011512H318 61,672 - 61,672

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances as specified in section
54 thereof.

BIEAREIGIFEANEL KRR ZEHAGH
RZIEBI E541KFTETAZ B TR R T2k T %
?0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z=201

1128318 IEFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. EZRHMENFIE
Group Company
rEH RAF
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
20115128318 2010%F12A31H 20115128318 2010F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FHERT FHIT
Trade payables 2 5 N IR 218,966 201,830 - =
Other payables from E fth & A B BsE A
related parties (Note 29) FRIE (B7aE29) 3,701 6,668 - =
Accrued expenses TERREB A 1,363 3,050 1,363 3,050
Salary and welfare payables JE < B T 3 M 61,492 53,065 3,008 2,386
Deferred government grants & ZE I 5 4 B
(Note (a)) (K@) 79,813 74,674 - -
Current income tax liabilites = HIFFEHEE 2,013 — - =
Other taxes payables H fth fE T AR IE 19,930 616 33 6
Other payables B FE S IR 35,351 21,952 61 10
422,629 361,855 4,465 5,452
(@)  Amount represents various subsidies granted by (@) ZFERAAREEFENFEERE M)

and received from local government authorities
research and development
projects conducted by the Group. These subsidies

for financing various

2 BRI HE AR A ML

will be recognised as income over the period
necessary to match with the cost that they are
intended to compensate.

At 31 December 2011, the ageing analysis of the Group’s
trade payables are as follows:

M2011512A8318 - A&EFHE
DT

31 December

ST 4 B M B -z % T e B = b 480 B 4R R4
MR ZEZ A ERREM IRAELE

5 e IR 2 Bk ik

31 December

2011 2010

20115%12831H 201012 A831H

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TATT

Current to 30 days 30HAR 133,763 100,480
31 - 60 days 31H=60H 25,739 20,836
Over 60 days 60H A & 59,464 80,514
218,966 201,830

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

Included in the balance of trade payables are trade
payables to related parties amounted to HK$167,452,000
(2010: HK$136,436,000) (Note 29).

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the carrying amounts
of trade and other payables of the Group and Company
approximate their fair values.

25. SHORT TERM BANK LOANS - GROUP

24, BEFZREMESRE &)

AESENZEESRAZENBBHALTE SR
18 A167,452,0005% 7T (20104 : 136,436,000
7t) (K132£29) »

M2011E K2010FE12 8310 AEE R AAT 2
BHhEMEMNZFEZEMERERARERE-

25. EHRTER-AEE

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

20115128318 2010F12H31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FATT

Unsecured £ 4K 1 24,670 23,504

The bank loans at 31 December 2011 were repayable
within one year and bear interest at the average borrowing
rate of 6.56% per annum (2010: 5.56%).

The short term bank loans are all denominated in Renminbi
and their carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

The Group has undrawn committed banking facilities
of HK$49,340,000 at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$47,008,000).

R2011F12831H SRITEXER —FARNEER
IR EEERNE6.56% (20104 : 5.56% ) 5t
E\O

RHBRTEFIUARBE MEKEERER
NAERE-

R2011F12A31H AEBEHRBBAZEEH
R1TE E % A% 549,340,000/ 7T (20104 -
47,008,000 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

26. CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) 26. &

OPERATIONS

Ex (R 2RE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit before taxation B 54 Al g A 131,229 63,126
Adjustment for: SRR
Depreciation of property, W HE R
plant and equipment RETE 5,639 7,867
Amortisation of intangible assets I & BB 8,724 6,547
Interest received W ERFI) 8, (2,928) (2,742)
Interest paid X AHLE 1,646 1,109
Share of loss of an associate b2l ki = l/NE | Ei =] 253 227
Gain on disposal of an associate el N g (1,053) =
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREE
plant and equipment (Yezs) 18 (619) 59
142,891 76,193
Changes in working capital LEESHEY
Inventories FE (7.820) (176,702)
Trade and other receivables 5 R H MWK RIE (131,933) (71,949)
Trade and other payables B 5 & H e~ 518 93,969 61,537
Cash generated from/(used in) operations wEEA S (FTR)ZERS 97,107 (110,921)
27. COMMITMENTS 27. EIE
Operating lease commitments REHERE

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for factories and
office premises are as follows:

AEERBETAEBIBERPAEYR 2KE
HEMARRRES N 2 EREFALRELT

Group Company
~EH AT

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
20115128318 2010%12A31H 20115128318 2010F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT FET FHAT
Not later than one year 5,874 6,931 1,375 701
In the second to fifth year FE2EZRESFEN 1,380 4,333 1,252 287
7,254 11,264 2,627 988

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liability at
31 December 2011 (2010: nil).

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transactions with
related parties during the year:

(@) Significant transactions with companies under

28. HEEE

MR2011F12A31H  AEB W EEAERNKEE

& (20106 : #&) o

29. BBALRE RAEER

BRAGEMBHRREMIENERBENR S MG
RN MANFEANEE BB A THETT N5

BHEAR S :

() EHERHEEFREHEEZHZIARAZIEKR

common control of CEC x5
Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLLEE
2011 2010
20114 2010%F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FE&xT FHE T
Sales of products HEEMm 60,775 54,397
Purchase of goods and services RIBE W MR 489,637 347,767
Interest received I ER F) 2, 1,164 105
Rental paid X 564 384

The above transactions were carried out in the ordinary
course of business and were on normal commercial terms.

R Z T AR BRI REERTE

7o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & Z2011F 128318 L FE

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Cont'd)

(b) Significant balances with companies under

29. BEBATIRZRER (&)

(b) EHEFHEEFREHEZEFHZIARAZIEKR

common control of CEC SeR
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
20114128318 2010412H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Trade receivables B 5 eI GRIE 16,239 6,742
Other receivables H At f& UK B 134 -
Deposits EZ N 98,680 94,015
Trade payables 2 5 N IR 167,452 136,436
Other payables H h fE 1~ 30IB 3,701 3,526
Except for deposits, the above balances with related parties BRAFFRN - J:L?ﬁﬂ R REER 2 2R

were unsecured, interest-free and settled according to the
contract terms. The weighted-average annual interest rate
of the deposits were 1.33% (2010: 1.50%).

(c) Transactions and balances with an associate

BARIGREE -
(20104 : 1.50%)

ZJJIJT%E$i’]$Z“JT7%1 33%

() HBEQATZXZRER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2011 2010
20114 20104
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Sales of products HEEMm 29,904 30,364

The above transactions for the year ended 31 December
2011 represented the transactions with the associate
from 1 January 2011 to the date when it was disposed
of (Note 6), and these transactions were carried out in
the ordinary course of business and were on normal
commercial terms.

FHEZE2011F12A3MBIEFEZR G EAREE
M0 F1ABEZBME AW EE 2B IEEZ
HENREITZR S (fat6) MEERZ TR
AEEKBEPIR —REBIEITET

FEETEEERARAT 201FEH O3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE2011F 128318 L FE

29.

(c)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Cont'd)

Transactions and balances with an associate
(Cont'd)

29. BBATIRGRES (&)

() EHEBREQATZIXZIREGEH(E)

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

20115%12831H 201012 A831H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHExT FHET

Trade receivables B 5 EWFIR - 13,376
Other payables H th FE 15 508 - 3,142

(d) Key management compensation d FEEEAEEME
Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2011 2010
201145 20104
HK$"000 HK$'000
FEx FATT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind I RN EYET 3,527 3,209
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRFTEI R 130 105
3,657 3,314

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2011



Set out below is a summary of the financial information of
the Group for the last five years.

Five-year Financial Summary

EFMBENRE

AT RASEBERAEMBFERNHERBR -

RESULTS 4
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
20115 20104 20094 20084 20074
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET FHET FHET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
(BER) (EEZ) (L= Z) (BEZ) (REFER)
(i) (i)
Continuing operations BB 725
Revenue N 995,111 574,586 460,533 621,805 652,767
Profit before taxation BR %4 Al g A 131,229 63,126 60,995 121,571 131,873
Taxation 18 (16,570) (3,185) (7,171) (16,997) (4,756)
Profit for the year from REKE 2 XB2
continuing operations RE A 114,659 59,941 53,824 104,574 127,117
(Loss)/Profit for the year from BaRbEE 2 ER
discontinued operation AEE (BR) &5H - - (15,819) (324,068) 12,713
Profit/(Loss) for the year AEREM/ (EE) 114,659 59,941 38,005 (219,494) 139,830
Attributable to; SER:
Owners of the Company RAREREHEE 114,659 59,941 41,072 (146,327) 90,505
Non-controlling interests FE4E I 1 - = (3,067) (73,167) 49,325
114,659 59,941 38,005 (219,494) 139,830

HEEFEEZERARAR 2011FFRH
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Five-year Financial Summary (conta)

EFHEEREE »)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE

31 December

12A31H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
20114 2010F 20094 20084F 20074F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FHET THET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E51)

(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited)
(RER) (&%) (g&=%) (&&EZ) (REER)

() ()

Total assets BELE 1,054,878 858,146 732,790 2,001,367 2,432,284
Total liabilities EREECE (447,299) (385,359) (328,461)  (1,445,066)  (1,528,812)
Non-controlling interests FEr R - - = (117,226) (235,745)
607,579 472,787 404,329 439,075 667,727

@) The financial summary for the year ended 31 December (i) # 220074 22008412 A31 H ILFE 2 M5 & FHE
2007 and 2008 are restated using the principles of merger ZEERABBERHESI E5 ATt 2 & e ERAl
accounting as prescribed in HKAG 5, details of which are set E5 BAFIBEEE#MN2009F12 8318 IEFE 2 4R

out in Note 2.1 of the consolidated financial statements for AU BREME2. 1R -
the year ended 31 December 2009.
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